THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA

SCHOOL REFORM COMMISSION

Office of Capital Programs

440 North Broad Street, 3rd Floor – Suite 371

Philadelphia, PA  19130

TELEPHONE: (215) 400-4730

Addendum No. 003
Subject: 
Guaranteed Energy Savings Act (GESA) Contract

Inclusive of Energy Efficient Building Upgrades

Location:  Northeast High School
1601 Cottman Avenue

Philadelphia, PA 19111

Saul High School

7100 Henry Ave.
Philadelphia, PA 19128

Strawberry Mansion High School
3133 Ridge Avenue
Philadelphia PA 19121
____________________________________________________________________________________

This Addendum, dated November 22, 2017, shall modify and become part of the RFP for the work of this project.  Any items not mentioned herein, or affected by, shall be performed strictly in accordance with the original documents.

Revise as indicated below or by attachment
1.1 Revisions to RFP 
1.1.1 The ESCO Pilot – Form Agreement 11.15.17 released in addendum #2 shall be revised as indicated: 
a. Page 23, 8.2.1 Delivery of Manufactures’ Warranties remove the following:  “two (2) original complete sets” and replace with: “five (5) original complete sets”.
b. Page 36, Add the following section and associated material “10.30 SECURITY CLEARANCE” (attached) and “Pennsylvania Background Checks Statutes” (attached).
c. Page 41, 18.4 Access to the Premises – remove the following: “Upon approval of the ESCO’s access request by the Project Manager, the School District shall provide sufficient rent-free space on the Premises for the installation and operation of the Selected ECMs and shall take reasonable steps to protect such Selected ECMs from harm, theft and misuse, as specified in the logistics plan.”  
Replace with: Upon approval of the ESCO’s access request by the Project Manager, the School District shall attempt to provide sufficient space on the Premises for the installation and operation of the Selected ECMs. The ESCO shall take reasonable steps to protect such Selected ECMs from harm, theft and misuse.”  
d. Page 49, 19.2 Evidence of Insurance Coverage - remove the following“(Fax No.: 215-400-4731)” and replace with “Email : gcthompson@phila.k12.pa.us”
e. Page 67, 33.3 Permits, Licenses and Approvals (b) Construction permit fees are NOT waived for this project. 

f. Page 68 - ARTICLE 36.  ANTI DISCRIMINATION POLICY; MBE/WBE PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS 36.1 - Remove the following: “The objective of the Policy is the promotion of prime contract and subcontract opportunities for minority and woman-owned business enterprises ("M/W/BEs") that are approved by the District or that are certified by the Minority Business Enterprise Council of the City of Philadelphia, Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority or any other certifying agency designated by the District in its discretion.” 
Replace with: “The objective of the Policy is the promotion of prime contract and subcontract opportunities for minority and woman-owned business enterprises ("M/W/BEs") that are approved by the District or that are certified by the Minority Business Enterprise Council of the City of Philadelphia or any other Municipal, State or Federal certifying agency.”

g. Page 82 ARTICLE 49.  NOTICE - Remove the following: 
“IF TO  SCHOOL DISTRICT: 
Attention:  Facsimile: (215) 

With copy to:

The School District of Philadelphia

Office of General Counsel

440 N. Broad Street, 3rd Floor

Philadelphia, PA 19130

Attention:  General Counsel

Facsimile:  (215)”

Replace with:

“IF TO  SCHOOL DISTRICT:
Attention: Gerry Thompson gcthompson@phila.k12.pa.us
With copy to:

The School District of Philadelphia

Office of General Counsel

440 N. Broad Street, 3rd Floor

Philadelphia, PA 19130

Attention:  OGC Ryan Silverman Esq. rsilverman@philasd.org
2.1 Supplemental Data
2.1.1 Proposer sign-in sheet for 10.27.17 Saul HS site survey.
2.1.2 Proposer sign-in sheet for 11.07.17 Northeast HS site survey.

2.1.3 Proposer sign-in sheet for 11.07.17 Strawberry Mansion site survey.

2.1.4 M/WBE sub-contractor outreach attendee list for 10.30.17 and 11.13.17.

3.1  
Proposer Questions
3.1.1 What is the operation of the cafeterias at each school - Cooking or warming?  Number of meals? How many seating’s?

· Northeast HS:
· Hours of operation 7:00AM to 7:40AM and 8:31AM to 2:46PM.
· Full service kitchen
· Average breakfast 400, average lunch 1900
· 7 lunch periods 
· Seating for 500
· Saul HS: 
· Hours of operation 6:30AM-2:00PM
· Full service kitchen 
· Average breakfast 230, Average lunch 350
· 3 lunch periods 
· Seating for 220

· Strawberry Mansion HS:
· Hours of operation 7:00AM-11:30AM 
· Full Service kitchen 
· Average breakfast 70, average lunch 125
· 3 lunch periods
· Seating for 380
3.1.2  What are the kitchen hood operation hours in terms of hours per day?
· Refer to 3.1.1.

3.1.3 If available, please provide mechanical drawings associated with the kitchen hoods and exhaust fans.

· This information is not available. 
3.1.4 Please provide the number of walk-in refrigeration/freezer units at each school.

· Northeast HS: 

· 2 walk-in freezers

· 2 walk-in refrigerators

· Saul HS: 
· 1 walk-in refrigerator 
· 1 walk-in freezer
· Strawberry Mansion HS: 
· 2 walk-in refrigerators 
· 2 walk in-freezers
3.1.5 Section V.A, indicates that rebates are to be deducted from the total project costs.  Can grants also be utilized in this capacity? Secondly, rebates and grants can be highly speculative, please provide guidance on the tolerance for these projections and the ESCO’s associated liability.
· ESCO must guarantee any cash flow revenue included in the cash flow pro-forma as part of the guarantee. As such, rebates and grant potential revenue may be estimated or projected on a preliminary basis, but amounts used in the cash flow to reduce the overall cost of the project are to be part of the ESCO guarantee. 
3.1.6 Demand response was indicated as an available ECM.  How should these revenues be treated given that the stream is highly speculative beyond the 3 year agreements offered by PJM?
· ESCO must guarantee revenues included in the cash flow pro-forma. It is agreed that the PJM program provides no guarantees beyond a 3year projection. As such only 3 years of known revenue should be reflected in the cash flow.

3.1.7 Section V.A indicates that operations and maintenance savings may not be utilized to support the cash flow and presumably the project size.  However section VIII.C lists “maintenance costs – warranty only, no reductions in staff” and “parts and labor” as part of the costs and savings for each FIM.  Additionally section V.B indicates that proposals must include “alterations that reduce energy consumption or operating costs based on future reductions in labor costs or costs for contracted services.”  Please clarify how these various cost savings should be shown within section VIII and if they can be utilized to support the project size.
· Operations and maintenance savings cannot be claimed in the cash flow pro-forma for the RFP. However, projections of same can be shown in the proposal. These revenues will likely be permitted in the final project, with supporting documentation not available during the RFP process. You are encouraged to propose measures that in addition to energy savings may provide O&M savings as well, however, the O&M savings component will not be included as part of the cash flow pro forma at the RFP phase.
3.1.8 Are the kitchens used throughout the school year at all three schools?
· Kitchen operation is limited to the normal school year September – June. Refer to 3.1.1 for daily operation.

3.1.9 Is there currently a computer management program in place? Please provide the number of computers, broken out by building.
· The District does not use a computer power management system in the three high schools. Accurate numbers of computers in each school is not available.
3.1.10 Please comment if gas service can be provided to Strawberry Mansion HS boiler room for new boilers.
· Existing gas lines surrounding the school are at capacity however the utility can install a new service to serve the building.  

3.1.11 Please comment if gas service can be provided to Walter B. Saul – Agriculture Building boiler room for new boilers?
· Existing gas lines in Henry Avenue have sufficient capacity.

3.1.12 Please confirm the adjoining Hill Elementary School is not in the scope at Strawberry Mansion. Are all energy sources to Hill Elementary shut down or is some level of heating maintained and lighting supplied, etc?
· Hill School is part of the scope. The facility is operating.

3.1.13 At Saul High School which boiler room serves the Gymnasium Building? 
· The main building boiler plant. 
3.1.14 For the owner supplied energy data in Appendix E: Owner Energy Data, all charges associated with the electric service (both generation and transmission) are included, however, in appendix 6 (subsection of Appendix E), only PECO transmission bills are provided.  Can copies of Generation Supplier bills be provided?
· No additional bills will be supplied.
3.1.15 For the owner supplied energy data in Appendix E: Owner Energy Data, the natural gas unit rate seems to vary significantly. Is there an explanation for the variation?
3.1.16 Do any of the schools in the pilot study have interruptible service for their natural gas? If so, is this due to pipe line capacity, rate reduction, or some other reason?
· Northeast is operating on IT gas due to reduced operating. 

· Saul main building boiler plant is operating on IT gas due to the lower operating cost. 
3.1.17 Do any of the schools in the pilot study pay for sewer? If so, can we get a copy of the bills or cost and consumption?
· No schools pay for sewer.
3.1.18 From our preliminary calculations, Saul HS has some significant changes in utility usage between years.  There are drastic increases in natural gas use one year and a large increase in electric another. Does the District have an explanation for these large variations?
· We do not feel the variations to be beyond normal once weather is factored.
3.1.19 From our preliminary calculations, Strawberry Mansion HS also has a significant change in utility usage between years, primarily in oil.  Does the District have an explanation for these large variations?
· This is due to the reduction in usage.
3.1.20 Per the MBE WBE Meet and Greet meeting that took place on October 31st, can the District confirm that a participating MBE WBE firm need only to be certified by a regulatory agency and does not need to be registered with the City of Philadelphia?
· Correct.

3.1.21 Per the MBE WBE Meet and Greet meeting that took place on October 31st, can the District confirm that MBE WBE participation, which will be verified by invoices, is based MBE WBE on invoice cost and should not include any ESCO overhead or profit?
· MBE/WBE participation is based on a percentage of the total ESCO Contract including overhead and profit.
3.1.22 Per the MBE WBE Meet and Greet meeting that took place on October 31st, can the District confirm that MBE WBE participation can occur through second tier subcontractors and professional service firms?
· Yes.
3.1.23 Is it possible to get a copy of the sign in list from the MBE WBE Meet and Greet that took place on October 31st?
· Sign-in sheets are posted to the website under addendum #3.
3.1.24 Can the District share any details about the scoring committee assigned to this RFP? Any information about team make up, schedule, or process would be greatly appreciated.
· No. 

3.1.25 Would the District entertain another proposal due date extension?
· No extension will be provided
3.1.26 Is it possible to get a copy of the sign in list from the surveys on October 27 and November 7?
· Sign-in sheets are posted to the website under addendum #3.
3.1.27 Is the District interested in ESCO recommended energy conservation measures that reduce energy/maintenance costs only but are not listed in Appendix G, such as timers for water fountain or vending machines?
· The District will entertain any sensible cost saving initiatives that are effective 
3.1.28 Is the District aware of any restrictions to converting any of the buildings heating system from oil to natural gas (ie: gas line size restrictions, gas extension costs, etc.)?
· No restrictions
3.1.29 Please provide further clarification in regard to Addendum 2, Section 1.1.3 and RFP page 22 Section B-4 on what level and number of years O&M service is required.
· O&M service costs are to be limited to additional required services required to maintain equipment being ADDED to the district. The O&M shall be provided for the life of the project. Example: A TecoGEN CM75LE Cogeneration unit, if installed as part of the project, requires periodic recurring scheduled maintenance that are now required for the full 20 year term of the project that it is expected to remain in service. The cost of the required periodic outside maintenance to keep this unit in service shall be accounted for. 
3.1.30 Should L.P. Hill School be included in our project as it is part of Strawberry Mansion HS?  During the initial survey we were shown a classroom in this section but during the last walk through we were not given access.
·  L.P. Hill School is to be included in the project as part of Strawberry Mansion HS
3.1.31 We need to determine the basis of storm water charges.  It appears to be a fixed fee.  Can you confirm and/or further elaborate on these charges?
· Based on usage.

3.1.32 The bills provided for water, do not include sewer.  Do the schools pay sewer under a separate charge?
· Sewer charges are not billed separately.

3.1.33 How to calculate the baseline is still unclear.  For consumption (kWh) we have the data for the 3 years and we can calculate an average annual consumption – is that what you want?  On the rate side we don’t have the kWh and kW rates for the 3 year baseline period so we cannot calculate an average kWh and kW rate to use.  We do have the current bills you provided under addendum #2 – do you want us to apply those kWh and kW rates to the average annual kWh consumption calculated?  If not, we will need the kWh and kW rates for each year of the baseline period or simply tell us what rates you wish for us to use.
· Yes- the baseline is intended to be the average of the provided 3 years. This is intended to smooth out annual variations and weather. You may use the rates provided in the current bills provided in Addendum #2. 
3.1.34 We are assuming the electric total dollar amounts provided with the initial RFP per building for each of the three years includes demand charges as well – is this true? 
· Correct.

3.1.35 Given capital monies are available for this project and thus this will not be financed how do you want us to represent this in our cash flow?  Are we to show our project price financed over the 20 year term with a 0% interest rate?
· Yes, represent it as financed over a 20 year term with an interest rate of 0%. 
3.1.36 Can we kindly request an extension to the due date?  Given the timing of when we will see answers to this last round of questions from the ESCOs we feel it would be in everyone’s best interest to move it out.  We don’t believe this would affect the summer installation in any way and it should make the review process on your end easier making sure everyone is on the same page and all open questions have been answered and understood.  
· No extension will be provided

3.1.37 Are we required to provide as built drawings for any lighting retrofit / replacement work? Will spreadsheet inventories be sufficient?
·  Spreadsheets with sufficient identification and product data will be acceptable.
3.1.38 Is any cooking done on the three sites, or is it used for warming only?
· Refer to 3.1.1 
3.1.39 Do the schools have a hot breakfast/after school meal program? If so are there counts of average meals served?
· Refer to 3.1.1

3.1.40 Are boiler plants required to be N+1? 
· Full redundancy is not required however in a two boiler plant each boiler is to be sized at 75% of total capacity. In a three boiler installation each boiler is to be sized at 50% capacity. A three boiler installation is required space permitting in lieu of two boilers.  
3.1.41 How many Trane units are there in the Hill Elementary wing of Strawberry Mansion? Most classrooms were locked when we did the site survey.
· Unknown. 
3.1.42 Age of roofs as stated in Addendum #2 is different than what was verbally provided to us in field. Please confirm that those in Addendum are more accurate.
· Per IV. REQUIRED PROCEDURES Respondents shall not rely on any oral representations.

3.1.43 Addendum #2, Item 1.1.1 revises the RFP to include a new bullet point under RFP Section V. General Information, Item A. Project Parameters that states “the minimum overall projected annual energy savings (inclusive of all fuels consumed by the facilities) shall be 20% of the Year 1 energy use baseline.” Is there a Project Parameter for water savings? 8. In Addendum #2, the response to question 3.1.15 indicates that the heating and ventilating (H&V) units in Strawberry Mansion were only energized during the heating season. The response to question 3.1.11 states that the heating season operates from October 15th – April 15th. The two answers imply that the H&V units do not operate from April 16th – October 14th and do not provide any ventilation air during this time. Addendum #2, Item 1.1.2 changes RFP Section V. General Information, Item E. Conditions to be Maintained, bullet point five to be “Air Changes/Ventilation Requirements: Within code at all times, including the latest prevailing ASHRAE standards for fresh air ventilation.” Compliance with codes and Addendum #2, Item 1.1.2 will result in the H&V Units operating when the buildings are occupied between April 16th – October 14th, thus increase energy consumption compared to the base year. As you may know, ESCOs typically address this and other energy penalties resulting from code compliance issues by applying a baseline adjustment to the base year. For this situation, the energy consumption of the H&V units operating during the occupied period between April 16th – October 14th is modeled and would be added to the base year energy use. However, Addendum #2, response to question 3.1.33 states that “No adjustments to baseline should be made during the RFP phase.” Without a baseline adjustment, it will be extremely difficult to achieve the newly required 20% minimum energy savings, while designing projects to address building system deficiencies that will increase energy consumption. Please advise.
· There is no target parameter for water savings. 

· Units are operational for ventilation whenever occupants are in the building. “Energized” was referencing the ability to provide heat. 

· For the purposes of this RFP response, please assume that the units are operational for fresh air at required times. A penalty does not need to be incurred at this time.  A baseline adjustment and/or energy penalty for new fresh air being introduced will be permitted during the CEA phase following RFP selection. During the CEA the ESCO will have the opportunity to undertake a more thorough investigation. 

3.1.44 Is low voltage control wiring required to be run in conduit? 
· Wherever wiring is exposed. 

3.1.45 Does exposed / large size pneumatic tubing required to be copper?
· No. 
3.1.46 The additional utility data provided in addendum #2 contain spreadsheets for the PGW usage and cost but not the actual bills, are the actual PGW bills available? 
· No. 
3.1.47 Section 3.1.26 indicates that field houses are not part of the project. There appears to be four self-contained, prefabricated mobile classrooms at Northeast High School, are these units part of the scope?
· Yes.

END OF ADDENDUM #003


Page 1 of 8
PAGE  
Page 2 of 8

